

Department of State**Division of Publications**

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 8th Floor Snodgrass/TN Tower
 Nashville, TN 37243
 Phone: 615-741-2650
 Fax: 615-741-5133
 Email: register.information@tn.gov

For Department of State Use Only

Sequence Number: 09-23-13
 Rule ID(s): 5556-5557
 File Date: 9/17/13
 Effective Date: 12/16/13

Rulemaking Hearing Rule(s) Filing Form

Rulemaking Hearing Rules are rules filed after and as a result of a rulemaking hearing. T.C.A. § 4-5-205

| | |
|---------------------------------|--|
| Agency/Board/Commission: | Environment and Conservation |
| Division: | Water Resources |
| Contact Person: | Bob O'Dette |
| Address: | William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11 th Floor Nashville, Tennessee |
| Zip: | 37243-1531 |
| Phone: | (615) 253-5319 |
| Email: | Robert.Odette@tn.gov |

Revision Type (check all that apply):

- Amendment
 New
 Repeal

Rule(s) Revised (ALL chapters and rules contained in filing must be listed here. If needed, copy and paste additional tables to accommodate multiple chapters. Please enter only ONE Rule Number/Rule Title per row)

| Chapter Number | Chapter Title |
|----------------|---|
| 0400-40-13 | Inter-basin Water Transfers |
| Rule Number | Rule Title |
| 0400-40-13-.01 | Purpose, Scope, and Applicability |
| 0400-40-13-.02 | Definitions |
| 0400-40-13-.03 | Individual Permit Applications |
| 0400-40-13-.04 | Public Involvement |
| 0400-40-13-.05 | Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits |
| 0400-40-13-.06 | Permit Terms and Conditions |
| 0400-40-13-.07 | General Permits |
| 0400-40-13-.08 | Enforcement and Penalties |
| 0400-40-13-.09 | Hearings |
| 0400-40-13-.10 | Annual Certification |
| 0400-40-13-.11 | Protected Areas |

| Chapter Number | Chapter Title |
|----------------|---|
| 1200-04-13 | Inter-basin Water Transfers |
| Rule Number | Rule Title |
| 1200-04-13-.01 | Purpose, Scope, and Applicability |
| 1200-04-13-.02 | Definitions |
| 1200-04-13-.03 | Individual Permit Applications |
| 1200-04-13-.04 | Public Involvement |
| 1200-04-13-.05 | Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits |

| | |
|----------------|-----------------------------|
| 1200-04-13-.06 | Permit Terms and Conditions |
| 1200-04-13-.07 | General Permits |
| 1200-04-13-.08 | Enforcement and Penalties |
| 1200-04-13-.09 | Hearings |
| 1200-04-13-.10 | Annual Certification |
| 1200-04-13-.11 | Protected Areas |

(Place substance of rules and other info here. Statutory authority must be given for each rule change. For information on formatting rules go to <http://state.tn.us/sos/rules/1360/1360.htm>)

Repeal

Chapter 1200-04-13 Inter-basin Water Transfers

Chapter 1200-04-13 Inter-basin Water Transfers is repealed.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

New Rules

Chapter 0400-40-13 Inter-basin Water Transfers

Table of Contents

0400-40-13-.01 Purpose, Scope, and Applicability
0400-40-13-.02 Definitions
0400-40-13-.03 Individual Permit Applications
0400-40-13-.04 Public Involvement
0400-40-13-.05 Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits
0400-40-13-.06 Permit Terms and Conditions
0400-40-13-.07 General Permits
0400-40-13-.08 Enforcement and Penalties
0400-40-13-.09 Hearings
0400-40-13-.10 Annual Certification
0400-40-13-.11 Protected Areas

0400-40-13-.01 Purpose, Scope, and Applicability

(1) Purpose of The Inter-Basin Water Transfer Act

As the population and demand for water resources grow, it is prudent to engage in planning for the future and to have an explicit mechanism in place to regulate proposals for the diversion of water from one river basin to another. By removing water from rivers, such inter-basin transfers raise issues of the protection of the public health, safety, welfare and the environment, as the water is no longer available for use in the original stream. The primary purpose of The Inter-basin Water Transfer Act is to allow regulation on the basis of the quantity of water in river basins. Although the common law addresses some of these concerns, it relies on after-the-fact litigation rather than a modern regulatory system. As The Inter-basin Water Transfer Act is remedial and police power legislation, the General Assembly has declared that it shall be liberally construed to effectuate its purpose.

(2) Purpose of this Chapter

The purpose of this chapter is to implement the Inter-basin Water Transfer Act through establishing procedures and requirements for permit application, processing, terms and conditions for permits, and otherwise regulate the inter-basin transfer of water.

(3) Who must apply for a permit:

(a) All persons or entities:

1. which have been granted powers by the State of Tennessee to acquire water, water rights and associated property by eminent domain or condemnation; or
2. which acquire or supply water for the use or benefit of public water supply systems as

defined in Title 68, Chapter 221, Section 703,

shall, when proposing a new or increased withdrawal of surface water or ground water for the purpose of transferring and/or diverting some or all of it out of a river basin either directly or through one (1) or more intermediaries, first apply for and obtain a permit from the commissioner, or his or her designee, prior to such diversion or transfer; provided, however, that in the case of ground water withdrawal this section shall only apply if the loss of the ground water has a significant potential to adversely affect the flow of a Tennessee surface water.

(b) Subparagraph (a) of this paragraph states who must apply for a permit as it is stated in T.C.A. § 69-7-201. Without limiting what is stated there, the following are examples of entities that must apply for a permit:

1. A new public water system whose service area will include an area that is outside of the basin of origin;
2. A public water system that proposes a new withdrawal point that is not in the same basin as some or all of the system;
3. A public water system that proposes to increase the amount it is withdrawing in order to transfer some or all of it to a system in a basin different from the basin of origin;
4. A public water system that proposes to increase the amount it is withdrawing in order to transfer some or all of it to another system in the basin of origin that will then transfer the water to a system in a basin different from the basin of origin; and
5. A private individual or corporation that proposes to withdraw water and transfer it to a public water system in a basin different from the basin of origin, either directly or through an intermediary.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.02 Definitions

When used in this Rule the following terms have the meanings given below unless otherwise specified:

“Act” means The Inter-basin Water Transfer Act, T.C.A. §§ 69-7-201 et seq.

“Basin” or “river basin” means the entire topographic extent of the ten watersheds and combinations of watersheds named in T.C.A. § 69-7-203. Maps of these basins may be viewed at the department’s web site, currently at: <http://www.tn.gov/environment/watersheds>.

“Basin of origin” means the river basin where the point of withdrawal for a transfer is located.

“Board” means the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas.

“Commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Department of Environment and Conservation or the Commissioner’s duly authorized representative, or in the event of the Commissioner’s absence, or a vacancy in the office of Commissioner, the Deputy Commissioner.

“Department” means the Department of Environment and Conservation.

“Downstream basin” means a basin that is downstream of the basin of origin.

“Intermediaries” means any water systems or other persons that receive water from a withdrawing system and either transfer it to another basin or pass it on to another intermediary.

“Losing river” or “Losing river basin” means a river or river basin which sustains a decrease in water as the result of a diversion or transfer of water to a different river basin and there is no significant return of the water to the river or river basin of origin.

“Permit” means an Inter-basin Water Transfer Permit. Permits are of two types, individual permits are issued for particular transfers after an application is made describing the particular project as provided in Rules 0400-40-13-.03 through 0400-40-13-.06; general permits are issued by the Commissioner for categories or classes of transfers and a person may be authorized for a transfer under the coverage of a general permit by filing a Notice of Intent, as provided in Rule 0400-40-13-.07.

“Person” means any or all persons, including individuals, firms, partnerships, associations, limited liability companies, public or private institutions, municipalities or political subdivisions, federal or state governmental agencies, or private or public corporations organized under the laws of this state or any other state or country.

“Potentially affected communities” means those units of local government, e.g., municipalities, counties, or utility districts, that have a public water system that withdraws water from a river basin or municipalities that are located downstream of a proposed transfer within 50 river miles of the proposed withdrawal point.

“Potentially affected water users” means potentially affected communities and persons with an NPDES permit for a discharge, persons with a permit for a withdrawal of water, and downstream of a proposed transfer within 50 river miles of the proposed withdrawal point.

“Protected Area” means a basin or portions of a basin wherein the demands upon supply made by water users have developed or threatens to develop to such a degree as to create a water shortage. These areas shall be determined and delineated by the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas after giving due notice and conducting a public hearing.

“Receiving river basin” means a river basin which is the recipient of an increase in water, over and above that occurring naturally, as the result of a transfer of water from a different river basin.

“Return of water” or “return” means water that is returned to the basin of origin or a downstream basin after a transfer to a different basin.

“Seven day, ten year low flow” or “7Q10 flow” or “low flow” means the lowest average daily flow for a duration of seven consecutive days with a recurrence interval of ten years and which is determined for the point of withdrawal from an unregulated stream, or for a withdrawal from a regulated stream, the minimum critical flow occurring once in ten years as determined by an analysis of records of operation and approved by the Commissioner.

“Significant potential to affect the flow” means, in the context of whether a ground water withdrawal is likely to affect a surface water, a withdrawal of ground water in a location that:

- (a) is in close proximity horizontally and vertically to a stream; and
- (b) has ground water with a significant degree of hydraulic connection to the surface water.

“Surface water” means any water located on the land surface which is not derived by pumping from ground water.

“Transfer” means the withdrawal, diversion, or pumping of surface water from one river basin and the use or discharge of all or any part of the water in a basin different from the basin of origin.

“Transfer facility” means any natural or man-made structure used to affect a transfer including, but not limited to, pumps, pipelines, canals, storage units, water treatment units and wastewater treatment units.

“Withdrawal” means the diversion or pumping of water out of a surface stream or from ground water if the loss of the ground water has a significant potential to adversely affect the flow of a Tennessee surface water in the basin of origin, whether or not there is a transfer.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

(1) Information required in a permit application.

Any person required to apply for a permit for an inter-basin water transfer under paragraph (3) of Rule 0400-40-13-.01 and T.C.A. § 69-7-204 shall submit an application for such permit on forms furnished, upon request, by the Commissioner. The application shall require an applicant to provide the commissioner the following information:

- (a) The volume of the proposed withdrawal and the proposed transfer stated in gallons per day that the applicant seeks to be authorized;
- (b) Identification of all of the withdrawal, return, and transfer points;
- (c) The volume of water that will be returned to the basin of origin or a downstream basin;
- (d) The peak capacity of each major component in the proposed withdrawal and transfer facilities;
- (e) Engineering and economic justification for the capacity of each major component of the proposed withdrawal and transfer facilities;
- (f) An assessment of the hydraulic and environmental impacts of the withdrawal on the losing river;
- (g) An engineering, environmental, and economic assessment of the feasibility of utilizing alternate water sources by the water system in the receiving basin;
- (h) A listing of conservation programs or practices occurring or proposed of the system in the receiving river basin;
- (i) The proposed date upon which the water transfer is to commence;
- (j) The purpose and justification for the proposed transfer; and
- (k) Any other appropriate information deemed necessary by the Commissioner for review of the proposed transfer.

(2) All permit applications shall be signed as follows:

- (a) For a corporation: by a responsible corporate officer. For the purpose of this subparagraph, a responsible corporate officer means a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy- or decision-making functions for the corporation.
- (b) For a partnership or sole proprietorship: by a general partner or the proprietor, respectively; or
- (c) For a municipality, state, federal, or other public agency: by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. For purposes of this subparagraph, a principal executive officer of a Federal agency includes: (i) The chief executive officer of the agency, or (ii) a senior executive officer having responsibility for the overall operations of a principal geographic unit of the agency (e.g., Regional Administrator of EPA).

(3) Interface with other required permits under the Act.

- (a) In some situations an activity may have to apply for both an inter-basin transfer permit and a permit under the Water Quality Control Act for the withdrawal. The latter is sometimes referred to as an Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP). In such a situation the Division of Water Resources shall have the applicant file one application for both permits that contains all information necessary for both and then shall process the application and either issue it with all conditions required by both Acts or deny it as required by either Act. The regulations for ARAP permits are found in Chapter 0400-40-07.

(4) Application Fees

The application fees for individual inter-basin transfer permits shall be \$250 for a flow less than or equal to 125,000 gpd; \$500 for a flow greater than 125,000 gpd and less than or equal to 250,000 gpd; \$750 for a flow greater than 250,000 gpd and less than or equal to 375,000 gpd; and \$1,000 for a flow greater than 375,000 gpd and less than or equal to 500,000 gpd. Above 500,000 gpd, the fee shall be \$1,000 for each 500,000 gpd or fraction thereof. These flows shall be such flows authorized to be transferred by the permit. This shall be calculated based upon the maximum amount authorized by the permit. This fee shall apply to new applications, renewals, or those modifications that extend the term of the permit. If an applicant for a permit modification only seeks an increase of the amount authorized to be transferred for the same permit term, then the fee shall be calculated on the basis of the difference in the two amounts.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.04 Public Involvement

(1) After receipt of an application, the department staff shall approve a Public Notice to seek public participation and comment on the application. The approved Public Notice shall be distributed to interested persons and shall be circulated within thirty (30) days of receipt of a completed application as follows:

(a) In order to inform interested and potentially interested persons of the proposed activity, the Public Notice will include the following information:

1. Name, address, and telephone number of the applicant;
2. Name and address of TDEC contact person;
3. A brief description of the proposed withdrawal and transfer, including the volumes;
4. The names of the specific waters affected by the proposed activity as well as the basin of origin and the receiving basin;
5. The purpose of the proposed transfer;
6. The procedure to submit comments on the proposed activity and the close of the comment period which shall not be sooner than thirty (30) days from receipt of the application;
7. The procedure for requesting a public hearing; and
8. A brief description of the procedure for the commissioner to make a final determination to issue a permit.

(b) TDEC will distribute the approved Public Notice to interested persons who have requested TDEC notify them of inter-basin transfer permit applications and by posting it on the TDEC website. TDEC will also distribute the Notice to the individuals on the mailing list maintained by the Permit Section, Division of Water Resources and to the individuals on the mailing list maintained by the Natural Resources Section, Division of Water Resources.

(c) The Applicant shall distribute the approved Public Notice as follows:

1. Publish a notice of the permit application once a week for four consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in each potentially affected community in the river basin of origin;
2. Provide notice of the application to a responsible official with each potentially affected community and water user within the proposed basin of origin by certified mail, return receipt requested; and

3. Post a minimum of three public notices in public buildings, e.g., courthouses, libraries, city halls, in each potentially affected community in the river basin of origin.
- (2) During the comment period, any person who may be adversely affected by a water transfer may submit a statement to the Commissioner briefly outlining why the person believes he may be adversely affected and making any comments in regard to permit issuance or denial or permit conditions. Upon receipt of such a statement, the Commissioner will schedule a public hearing on the permit application. Notice shall be given of the public hearing at least thirty (30) days prior to the hearing.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.05 Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits

- (1) In reviewing a permit application, the Commissioner shall consider information developed through studies, analyses, or inquiries undertaken by the Commissioner and information and comments submitted to the Commissioner by the applicant, public agencies, affected persons, and the public.
- (2) The following factors will be used by the Commissioner in making a determination on a permit application:
 - (a) the quantity of the proposed withdrawal and the stream flow of the losing river(s), with special concern for low flow conditions;
 - (b) protection of the present uses, and consideration of projected stream uses of the losing river(s), including but not limited to, present agricultural, municipal, industrial and in-stream uses, and assimilative needs, with special concern for low flow conditions;
 - (c) protection of the water quality in the losing river(s) at low flow conditions;
 - (d) the reasonably foreseeable future water needs of the losing river basin;
 - (e) the reasonably foreseeable future water needs of the applicant for the water to be transferred, including methods of water use, conservation, and efficiency of use;
 - (f) the beneficial impact of any proposed transfer, and the capability of the applicant to implement effectively its responsibilities under the requested permit;
 - (g) the nature of the applicant's use of the water, to determine whether the use is reasonable and beneficial;
 - (h) whether the proposed project shall promote conservation of water;
 - (i) the feasibility, the costs, and the environmental impacts of alternative sources of supply;
 - (j) the requirements of other state or federal agencies with authority relating to water resources;
 - (k) the availability of water in the losing river basin to respond to emergencies, including drought;
 - (l) whether the project shall have any beneficial or detrimental impact on navigation, hydropower or other power generation, fish and wildlife habitat, aesthetics, or recreation;
 - (m) the quantity, location, and timing of water returned to the basin of origin or a downstream basin;
 - (n) climatic conditions;
 - (o) any offsetting increases in flow in the basin of origin that may be arranged through permit conditions;
 - (p) the number of downstream river miles from which water will be diverted as a result of the transfer; and

- (q) such other factors as are reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes of the Act and this chapter.

The foregoing list is to be used by the Commissioner as a basis both to deny permits and to impose conditions in permits that are issued. The commissioner should use sound discretion in applying this list. It is not intended that the Commissioner must deny a permit if, in considering the list as a whole, it is the Commissioner's judgment that the permit should be issued. On the other hand, if one or two of the factors are of such overriding importance that it is the Commissioner's determination that they necessitate denial of a permit, which is an appropriate use of these factors.

- (3) No transfer of water may be permitted at any time that would impair the classified uses of a losing river. Furthermore, no transfer of water shall cause the remaining flow in the losing river basin to be less than the seven day, ten year low flow as established prior to the inter-basin transfer unless a condition on the permit states that the transfer of water shall be required to cease when the instantaneous stream flow of the river of origin is equal to or less than a specified value.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.06 Terms and Conditions for Individual Permits

- (1) Based upon review of all pertinent information the Commissioner may issue, deny or issue a permit with conditions.
- (2) When issuing a permit, the Commissioner may include conditions in the permit, including but not limited to the following:
 - (a) The amount of water approved for transfer may be varied seasonally;
 - (b) The transfer of water shall be required to cease or decrease when the instantaneous stream flow of the river basin of origin is equal to or less than a specified value;
 - (c) Special provisions in order to promote an adequate water supply for the state or to mitigate any future adverse conditions resulting from the transfer;
 - (d) Installation, maintenance and use of stream flow monitoring equipment;
 - (e) Establishment and reporting of transfer activities by the permittee.
- (3) Upon the issuance by the Governor of a declaration or proclamation of an emergency relating to water resources, the Commissioner may:
 - (a) waive the usual permitting requirements and issue a temporary emergency transfer permit. Any such permit must be limited to meet the needs created by the emergency, and any such permit may be issued for a period no longer than six months or the duration of the Governor's declaration or proclamation, whichever period is shorter; or
 - (b) modify or revoke and reissue any inter-basin transfer permit.
- (4) Permits shall be issued for a renewable term of not more than five years. The Commissioner may coordinate permits with the issuance cycle for NPDES permits in a watershed.
- (5) Permits may contain such terms and conditions as are appropriate to carry out the purposes of the Act and this chapter. This includes, but is not limited to, provisions for filing periodic reports on the amount transferred and the flow in the losing river.
- (6) Applicants may apply for permit modifications to increase the authorized transfer amount or for other reasons within the term of the permit.
- (7) The Commissioner may modify, suspend, or revoke a permit for the reasons specified in T.C.A. § 69-7-206.

- (8) A transfer permit may be renewed following a full review by the Commissioner of all past and current information relating to the transfer. An application for transfer permit renewal shall be filed by the applicant with the Commissioner a minimum of six (6) months prior to permit expiration.
- (9) No permit may be transferred from one person to any other person except upon review and approval by the Commissioner. In reviewing a request for a permit transfer, the Commissioner may modify any of the permit terms.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.07 General Permits

- (1) The Commissioner may issue a general permit for a category of transfer activities. Such permits shall be issued using the same process of public notification as would be used for an individual permit except that the Department will bear the costs involved. Such permits shall require:
 - (a) that any person intending to make use of a general permit for authorization of any transfer must file a Notice of Intent and pay the processing fee specified in the general permit; and
 - (b) that the Department will issue a response either confirming that the general permit is applicable or stating why it is not and directing the person to file an individual permit application.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.08 Enforcement and penalties

- (1) Any person who
 - (a) fails to make a timely application or renewal application for a permit required by the Act;
 - (b) commences an inter-basin transfer without having obtained a permit under the Act and these rules;
 - (c) fails to comply with the terms of a permit; or
 - (d) fails to submit a true and accurate report required by the Act and these rules;is subject to a penalty of up to \$10,000 per day per violation as provided in T.C.A. § 69-7-208.
- (2) The Commissioner is also authorized to file an action in court to address any violation of the Act seeking any remedy available under the Act or at common law.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.09 Hearings

- (1) Any person actually aggrieved by the decision of the Commissioner to grant or deny a transfer permit may request a hearing before the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas by filing a written petition within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the decision. With the exception of an applicant for a transfer permit, any person who has not submitted a written comment under Rule 0400-40-13-.04, indicating how such person will be adversely affected by a water transfer in a manner or to a degree significantly different from the general public, is not an aggrieved party within the meaning of these rules.
- (2) Any person named in a Commissioner's Order or assessment may request a hearing before the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas by filing a written petition within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the order or assessment. The petition shall set forth the grounds and reasons for the appeal. If such a petition is not filed within the thirty (30) days, the violator shall be deemed to have consented to the assessment and it shall become final.

- (3) Any such hearing will be conducted in accordance with the contested case provisions of the Uniform Administrative Procedures Act, T.C.A. § 4-5-301 et seq.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.10 Annual Certification

- (1) On or before October 1 of every year, any person who operated an existing inter-basin transfer on May 31, 2000, either directly or through one or more intermediaries, shall file with the department a statement under oath certifying that there has been no increase in the transfer together with flow or pumping records documenting the amount transferred. The Department may develop a form for this purpose.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

0400-40-13-.11 Protected Areas

Protected areas may be established through a rulemaking action by the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas. Any person desiring to have such an area established may request this action by sending a letter to the Board stating the basis for such action. The Uniform Administrative Procedures Act also allows a more formal process for requesting a rulemaking action in T.C.A. § 4-5-201.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

* If a roll-call vote was necessary, the vote by the Agency on these rulemaking hearing rules was as follows:

| Board Member | Aye | No | Abstain | Absent | Signature (if required) |
|----------------------|-----|----|---------|--------|-------------------------|
| James W. Cameron III | X | | | | |
| Jill E. Davis | | | | X | |
| Mayor Kevin Davis | X | | | | |
| Derek Gernt | | | | X | |
| John Guoynes | X | | | | |
| C. Monty Halcomb | X | | | | |
| Chuck Head | X | | | | |
| Charlie R. Johnson | X | | | | |
| Judy Manners | X | | | | |
| John McClurkan | X | | | | |
| Frank McGinley | | | | X | |
| D. Anthony Robinson | X | | | | |

I certify that this is an accurate and complete copy of rulemaking hearing rules, lawfully promulgated and adopted by the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas on 06/18/2013, and is in compliance with the provisions of T.C.A. § 4-5-222.

I further certify the following:

Notice of Rulemaking Hearing filed with the Department of State on: 02/13/13

Rulemaking Hearing(s) Conducted on: (add more dates). 04/09/13

Date: June 18, 2013

Signature: James W. Cameron III

Name of Officer: James W. Cameron III

Title of Officer: Chairman



Subscribed and sworn to before me on: June 18, 2013

Notary Public Signature: Carol L. Grice

My commission expires on: June 21, 2016

All rulemaking hearing rules provided for herein have been examined by the Attorney General and Reporter of the State of Tennessee and are approved as to legality pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 4, Chapter 5.

RE Cooper Jr
 Robert E. Cooper, Jr.
 Attorney General and Reporter
8-23-13
 Date

Department of State Use Only

Filed with the Department of State on: 9/17/13

Effective on: 12/16/13

Tre Hargett

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

RECEIVED
2013 SEP 17 PM 3:51
SECRETARY OF STATE

Public Hearing Comments

One copy of a document containing responses to comments made at the public hearing must accompany the filing pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-222. Agencies shall include only their responses to public hearing comments, which can be summarized. No letters of inquiry from parties questioning the rule will be accepted. When no comments are received at the public hearing, the agency need only draft a memorandum stating such and include it with the Rulemaking Hearing Rule filing. Minutes of the meeting will not be accepted. Transcripts are not acceptable.

There were no comments received during the comment period.

Regulatory Flexibility Addendum

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-401 through 4-5-404, prior to initiating the rule making process as described in T.C.A. § 4-5-202(a)(3) and T.C.A. § 4-5-202(a), all agencies shall conduct a review of whether a proposed rule or rule affects small businesses.

This rulemaking is intended to move the rules from Chapter 1200-04-13 to Chapter 0400-40-13 and to edit the document to correct typos and incorrect references.

- (1) The type or types of small business and an identification and estimate of the number of small businesses subject to the proposed rule that would bear the cost of, or directly benefit from the proposed rule.

There is no impact to small businesses and consumers resulting from this rulemaking.

- (2) The projected reporting, recordkeeping, and other administrative costs required for compliance with the proposed rule, including the type of professional skills necessary for preparation of the report or record.

There are no additional costs associated with this rulemaking.

- (3) A statement of the probable effect on impacted small businesses and consumers.

There is no impact to small businesses and consumers resulting from this rulemaking.

- (4) A description of any less burdensome, less intrusive or less costly alternative methods of achieving the purpose and objectives of the proposed rule that may exist, and to what extent the alternative means might be less burdensome to small business.

There is no impact to small businesses resulting from this rulemaking.

- (5) A comparison of the proposed rule with any federal or state counterparts.

There is no meaningful comparison with any federal or state counterparts for this rulemaking.

- (6) Analysis of the effect of the possible exemption of small businesses from all or any part of the requirements contained in the proposed rule.

To accomplish the goal of this rulemaking an exemption of small businesses is not possible.

Impact on Local Governments

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-220 and 4-5-228 “any rule proposed to be promulgated shall state in a simple declarative sentence, without additional comments on the merits of the policy of the rules or regulation, whether the rule or regulation may have a projected impact on local governments.” (See Public Chapter Number 1070 (<http://state.tn.us/sos/acts/106/pub/pc1070.pdf>) of the 2010 Session of the General Assembly)

The Department does not anticipate that this rulemaking will have an impact on local governments.

Additional Information Required by Joint Government Operations Committee

All agencies, upon filing a rule, must also submit the following pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-226(i)(1).

- (A) A brief summary of the rule and a description of all relevant changes in previous regulations effectuated by such rule;

This rulemaking is intended to move the rules from Chapter 1200-04-13 to Chapter 0400-40-13 and to edit the document to correct typos and incorrect references.

- (B) A citation to and brief description of any federal law or regulation or any state law or regulation mandating promulgation of such rule or establishing guidelines relevant thereto;

This rulemaking is being promulgated under the authority of T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

- (C) Identification of persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities most directly affected by this rule, and whether those persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities urge adoption or rejection of this rule;

There is no impact to persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities resulting from this rulemaking. Consequently, there was no support or rejection of this rule.

- (D) Identification of any opinions of the attorney general and reporter or any judicial ruling that directly relates to the rule;

The Department is not aware of any.

- (E) An estimate of the probable increase or decrease in state and local government revenues and expenditures, if any, resulting from the promulgation of this rule, and assumptions and reasoning upon which the estimate is based. An agency shall not state that the fiscal impact is minimal if the fiscal impact is more than two percent (2%) of the agency's annual budget or five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000), whichever is less;

This rulemaking will have no fiscal impact on state and local governments.

- (F) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives, possessing substantial knowledge and understanding of the rule;

Robert O'Dette
Division of Water Resources
William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243
(615) 253-5319

- (G) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees;

Jenny Howard
Deputy General Counsel
Office of General Counsel

- (H) Office address, telephone number, and email address of the agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees; and

Office of General Counsel
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation
William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 2nd Floor

Nashville, Tennessee 37243
(615) 532-0131
Jenny.Howard@tn.gov

(I) Any additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

The Department is not aware of any.

**Department of State
Division of Publications**

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 8th Floor Snodgrass/TN Tower
Nashville, TN 37243
Phone: 615-741-2650
Fax: 615-741-5133
Email: register.information@tn.gov

For Department of State Use Only

Sequence Number: _____
Rule ID(s): _____
File Date: _____
Effective Date: _____

Rulemaking Hearing Rule(s) Filing Form

Rulemaking Hearing Rules are rules filed after and as a result of a rulemaking hearing. T.C.A. § 4-5-205

| | |
|---------------------------------|--|
| Agency/Board/Commission: | Environment and Conservation |
| Division: | Water Resources |
| Contact Person: | Bob O'Dette |
| Address: | William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11 th Floor Nashville, Tennessee |
| Zip: | 37243-1531 |
| Phone: | (615) 253-5319 |
| Email: | Robert.Odette@tn.gov |

Revision Type (check all that apply):

- Amendment
 New
 Repeal

Rule(s) Revised (ALL chapters and rules contained in filing must be listed here. If needed, copy and paste additional tables to accommodate multiple chapters. Please enter only ONE Rule Number/Rule Title per row)

| Chapter Number | Chapter Title |
|----------------|---|
| 0400-40-13 | Inter-basin Water Transfers |
| Rule Number | Rule Title |
| 0400-40-13-.01 | Purpose, Scope, and Applicability |
| 0400-40-13-.02 | Definitions |
| 0400-40-13-.03 | Individual Permit Applications |
| 0400-40-13-.04 | Public Involvement |
| 0400-40-13-.05 | Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits |
| 0400-40-13-.06 | Permit Terms and Conditions |
| 0400-40-13-.07 | General Permits |
| 0400-40-13-.08 | Enforcement and Penalties |
| 0400-40-13-.09 | Hearings |
| 0400-40-13-.10 | Annual Certification |
| 0400-40-13-.11 | Protected Areas |

| Chapter Number | Chapter Title |
|----------------|---|
| 1200-04-13 | Inter-basin Water Transfers |
| Rule Number | Rule Title |
| 1200-04-13-.01 | Purpose, Scope, and Applicability |
| 1200-04-13-.02 | Definitions |
| 1200-04-13-.03 | Individual Permit Applications |
| 1200-04-13-.04 | Public Involvement |
| 1200-04-13-.05 | Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits |

| | |
|----------------|-----------------------------|
| 1200-04-13-.06 | Permit Terms and Conditions |
| 1200-04-13-.07 | General Permits |
| 1200-04-13-.08 | Enforcement and Penalties |
| 1200-04-13-.09 | Hearings |
| 1200-04-13-.10 | Annual Certification |
| 1200-04-13-.11 | Protected Areas |

(Place substance of rules and other info here. Statutory authority must be given for each rule change. For information on formatting rules go to <http://state.tn.us/sos/rules/1360/1360.htm>)

Repeal

Chapter 1200-04-13 Inter-basin Water Transfers

Chapter 1200-04-13 Inter-basin Water Transfers is repealed.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

New Rules

Chapter 0400-40-13 Inter-basin Water Transfers

Table of Contents

- 0400-40-13-.01 Purpose, Scope, and Applicability
- 0400-40-13-.02 Definitions
- 0400-40-13-.03 Individual Permit Applications
- 0400-40-13-.04 Public Involvement
- 0400-40-13-.05 Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits
- 0400-40-13-.06 Permit Terms and Conditions
- 0400-40-13-.07 General Permits
- 0400-40-13-.08 Enforcement and Penalties
- 0400-40-13-.09 Hearings
- 0400-40-13-.10 Annual Certification
- 0400-40-13-.11 Protected Areas

~~1200-4-13-.01~~ 0400-40-13-.01 Purpose, Scope, and Applicability

(1) Purpose of The Inter-Basin Water Transfer Act

As the population and demand for water resources grow, it is prudent to engage in planning for the future and to have an explicit mechanism in place to regulate proposals for the diversion of water from one river basin to another. By removing water from rivers, such inter-basin transfers raise issues of the protection of the public health, safety, welfare and the environment, as the water is no longer available for use in the original stream. The primary purpose of The Inter-basin Water Transfer Act is to allow regulation on the basis of the quantity of water in river basins. Although the common law addresses some of these concerns, it relies on after-the-fact litigation rather than a modern regulatory system. As The Inter-basin Water Transfer Act is remedial and police power legislation, the General Assembly has declared that it shall be liberally construed to effectuate its purpose.

(2) Purpose of this **Rule** Chapter

The purpose of this **Rule** chapter is to implement the Inter-basin Water Transfer Act through establishing procedures and requirements for permit application, processing, terms and conditions for permits, and otherwise regulate the inter-basin transfer of water.

(3) Who must apply for a permit:

(a) All persons or entities:

1. which have been granted powers by the State of Tennessee to acquire water, water rights and associated property by eminent domain or condemnation; or
2. which acquire or supply water for the use or benefit of public water supply systems as

defined in Title 68, Chapter 221, Section 703,

shall, when proposing a new or increased withdrawal of surface water or ground water for the purpose of transferring and/or diverting some or all of it out of a river basin either directly or through one (1) or more intermediaries, first apply for and obtain a permit from the commissioner, or his or her designee, prior to such diversion or transfer; provided, however, that in the case of ground water withdrawal this section shall only apply if the loss of the ground water has a significant potential to adversely affect the flow of a Tennessee surface water.

- (b) Subparagraph (a) of this paragraph states who must apply for a permit as it is stated in P.Ch. 854 T.C.A. § 69-7-201. Without limiting what is stated there, the following are examples of entities that must apply for a permit:
1. A new public water system whose service area will include an area that is outside of the basin of origin;
 2. A public water system that proposes a new withdrawal point that is not in the same basin as some or all of the system;
 3. A public water system that proposes to increase the amount it is withdrawing in order to transfer some or all of it to a system in a basin different from the basin of origin;
 4. A public water system that proposes to increase the amount it is withdrawing in order to transfer some or all of it to another system in the basin of origin that will then transfer the water to a system in a basin different from the basin of origin; and
 5. A private individual or corporation that proposes to withdraw water and transfer it to a public water system in a basin different from the basin of origin, either directly or through an intermediary.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-.02~~ 0400-40-13-.02 Definitions

When used in this Rule the following terms have the meanings given below unless otherwise specified:

“Act” means The Inter-basin Water Transfer Act, P.Ch. 854 of the Acts of 2000 T.C.A. §§ 69-7-201 et seq.

“Basin” or “river basin” means the entire topographic extent of the ten watersheds and combinations of watersheds named in § 4 of the Act T.C.A. § 69-7-203. Maps of these basins may be viewed at the department’s web site, currently at: <http://www.tn.gov/environment/watersheds>.

“Basin of origin” means the river basin where the point of withdrawal for a transfer is located.

“Board” means the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas Control Board.

“Commissioner” means the eCommissioner of the dDepartment of eEnvironment and eConservation or the eCommissioner’s duly authorized representative, or in the event of the eCommissioner’s absence, or a vacancy in the office of eCommissioner, the dDeputy eCommissioner.

“Department” means the dDepartment of eEnvironment and eConservation.

“Downstream basin” means a basin that is downstream of the basin of origin.

“Intermediaries” means any water systems or other persons that receive water from a withdrawing system and either transfer it to another basin or pass it on to another intermediary.

“Losing river” or “Losing river basin” means a river or river basin which sustains a decrease in water as the result of a diversion or transfer of water to a different river basin and there is no significant return of the water to the river or river basin of origin.

"Permit" means an Inter-basin Water Transfer Permit. Permits are of two types, individual permits are issued for particular transfers after an application is made describing the particular project as provided in Rules ~~0400-40-13-.03~~ through ~~0400-40-13-.06~~; general permits are issued by the ~~e~~Commissioner for categories or classes of transfers and a person may be authorized for a transfer under the coverage of a general permit by filing a Notice of Intent, as provided in Rule ~~0400-40-13-.07~~.

"Person" means any or all persons, including individuals, firms, partnerships, associations, limited liability companies, public or private institutions, municipalities or political subdivisions, federal or state governmental agencies, or private or public corporations organized under the laws of this state or any other state or country.

"Potentially affected communities" means those units of local government, e.g., municipalities, counties, or utility districts, that have a public water system that withdraws water from a river basin or municipalities that are located downstream of a proposed transfer within ~~fifty (50)~~ river miles of the proposed withdrawal point.

"Potentially affected water users" means potentially affected communities and persons with an NPDES permit for a discharge, persons with a permit for a withdrawal of water, and downstream of a proposed transfer within ~~fifty (50)~~ river miles of the proposed withdrawal point.

"Protected Area" means a basin or portions of a basin wherein the demands upon supply made by water users have developed or threaten to develop to such a degree as to create a water shortage. These areas shall be determined and delineated by the ~~Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas Control Board~~ after giving due notice and conducting a public hearing.

"Receiving river basin" means a river basin which is the recipient of an increase in water, over and above that occurring naturally, as the result of a transfer of water from a different river basin.

"Return of water" or "return" means water that is returned to the basin of origin or a downstream basin after a transfer to a different basin.

"Seven day, ten year low flow" or "7Q10 flow" or "low flow" means the lowest average daily flow for a duration of seven consecutive days with a recurrence interval of ten years and which is determined for the point of withdrawal from an unregulated stream, or for a withdrawal from a regulated stream, the minimum critical flow occurring once in ten years as determined by an analysis of records of operation and approved by the Commissioner.

"Significant potential to affect the flow" means, in the context of whether a ground water withdrawal is likely to affect a surface water, a withdrawal of ground water in a location that:

- (a) is in close proximity horizontally and vertically to a stream; and
- (b) has ground water with a significant degree of hydraulic connection to the surface water.

"Surface water" means any water located on the land surface which is not derived by pumping from ground water.

"Transfer" means the withdrawal, diversion, or pumping of surface water from one river basin and the use or discharge of all or any part of the water in a basin different from the basin of origin.

"Transfer facility" means any natural or man-made structure used to ~~effect~~ ~~affect~~ a transfer including, but not limited to, pumps, pipelines, canals, storage units, water treatment units and wastewater treatment units.

"Withdrawal" means the diversion or pumping of water out of a surface stream or from ground water if the loss of the ground water has a significant potential to adversely affect the flow of a Tennessee surface water in the basin of origin, whether or not there is a transfer.

~~1200-4-13-.03~~ 0400-40-13-.03 Individual Permit Applications

(1) Information required in a permit application.

Any person required to apply for a permit for an inter-basin water transfer under ~~rule 1200-4-13-.01(3) paragraph (3) of Rule 0400-40-13-.01~~ and ~~§ 5 of the Act T.C.A. § 69-7-204~~ shall submit an application for such permit on forms furnished, upon request, by the ~~e~~Commissioner. The application shall require an applicant to provide the commissioner the following information:

- (a) The volume of the proposed withdrawal and the proposed transfer stated in gallons per day that the applicant seeks to be authorized;
- (b) Identification of all of the withdrawal, return, and transfer points;
- (c) The volume of water that will be returned to the basin of origin or a downstream basin;
- (d) The peak capacity of each major component in the proposed withdrawal and transfer facilities;
- (e) Engineering and economic justification for the capacity of each major component of the proposed withdrawal and transfer facilities;
- (f) An assessment of the hydraulic and environmental impacts of the withdrawal on the losing river;
- (g) An engineering, environmental, and economic assessment of the feasibility of utilizing alternate water sources by the water system in the receiving basin;
- (h) A listing of conservation programs or practices occurring or proposed of the system in the receiving river basin;
- (i) The proposed date upon which the water transfer is to commence;
- (j) The purpose and justification for the proposed transfer; and
- (k) Any other appropriate information deemed necessary by the ~~e~~Commissioner for review of the proposed transfer.

(2) All permit applications shall be signed as follows:

- (a) For a ~~corporation.~~ By corporation: by a responsible corporate officer. For the purpose of this ~~section subparagraph~~, a responsible corporate officer means a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy- or decision-making functions for the corporation.
- (b) For a partnership or sole ~~proprietorship.~~ By proprietorship: by a general partner or the proprietor, respectively; or
- (c) For a municipality, state, federal, or other public ~~agency.~~ By agency: by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. For purposes of this ~~section subparagraph~~, a principal executive officer of a Federal agency includes: (i) The chief executive officer of the agency, or (ii) a senior executive officer having responsibility for the overall operations of a principal geographic unit of the agency (e.g., Regional Administrator of EPA).

(3) Interface with other required permits under the Act.

- (a) In some situations an activity may have to apply for both an inter-basin transfer permit and a permit under the Water Quality Control Act for the withdrawal. The latter is sometimes referred to as an Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP). In such a situation the Division of Water ~~Pollution Control Resources~~ shall have the applicant file one application for both permits that contains all information necessary for both and then shall process the application and either issue

it with all conditions required by both Acts or deny it as required by either Act. The regulations for ARAP permits are found ~~at 1200-4-7-.01 et seq~~ in Chapter 0400-40-07.

(4) Application Fees

The application fees for individual inter-basin transfer permits shall be \$250-~~00~~ for a flow less than or equal to 125,000 gpd; \$500-~~00~~ for a flow greater than 125,000 gpd and less than or equal to 250,000 gpd; \$750-~~00~~ for a flow greater than 250,000 gpd and less than or equal to 375,000 gpd; and \$1,000-~~00~~ for a flow greater than 375,000 gpd and less than or equal to 500,000 gpd. Above 500,000 gpd, the fee shall be \$1,000 for each 500,000 gpd or fraction thereof. These flows shall be such flows authorized to be transferred by the permit. This shall be calculated based upon the maximum amount authorized by the permit. This fee shall apply to new applications, renewals, or those modifications that extend the term of the permit. If an applicant for a permit modification only seeks an increase of the amount authorized to be transferred for the same permit term, then the fee shall be calculated on the basis of the difference in the two amounts.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-.04~~ 0400-40-13-.04 Public Involvement

(1) After receipt of an application, the department staff shall approve a Public Notice to seek public participation and comment on the application. The approved Public Notice shall be distributed to interested persons and shall be circulated within thirty (30) days of receipt of a completed application as follows:

(a) In order to inform interested and potentially interested persons of the proposed activity, the Public Notice will include the following information:

1. Name, address, and telephone number of the applicant;
2. Name and address of TDEC contact person;
3. A brief description of the proposed withdrawal and transfer, including the volumes;
4. The names of the specific waters affected by the proposed activity as well as the basin of origin and the receiving basin;
5. The purpose of the proposed transfer;
6. The procedure to submit comments on the proposed activity and the close of the comment period which shall not be sooner than thirty (30) days from receipt of the application;
7. The procedure for requesting a public hearing; and
8. A brief description of the procedure for the commissioner to make a final determination to issue a permit.

(b) TDEC will distribute the approved Public Notice to interested persons who have requested TDEC notify them of inter-basin transfer permit applications and by posting it on the TDEC website. TDEC will also distribute the Notice to the individuals on the mailing list maintained by the Permit Section, Division of Water Pollution Control Resources and to the individuals on the mailing list maintained by the Natural Resources Section, Division of Water Pollution Control Resources.

(c) The Applicant shall distribute the approved Public Notice as follows:

1. Publish a notice of the permit application once a week for four consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in each potentially affected community in the river basin of origin;

2. Provide notice of the application to a responsible official with each potentially affected community and water user within the proposed basin of origin by certified mail, return receipt requested; and
 3. Post a minimum of three public notices in public buildings, e.g., courthouses, libraries, city halls, in each potentially affected community in the river basin of origin.
- (2) During the comment period, any person who may be adversely affected by a water transfer may submit a statement to the eC^ommissioner briefly outlining why the person believes he may be adversely affected and making any comments in regard to permit issuance or denial or permit conditions. Upon receipt of such a statement, the eC^ommissioner will schedule a public hearing on the permit application. Notice shall be given of the public hearing at least thirty (30) days prior to the hearing.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-05~~ 0400-40-13-05 Criteria for Issuance of Individual Permits

- (1) In reviewing a permit application, the eC^ommissioner shall consider information developed through studies, analyses, or inquiries undertaken by the eC^ommissioner and information and comments submitted to the eC^ommissioner by the applicant, public agencies, affected persons, and the public.
- (2) The following factors will be used by the eC^ommissioner in making a determination on a permit application:
 - (a) the quantity of the proposed withdrawal and the stream flow of the losing river(s), with special concern for low flow conditions;
 - (b) protection of the present uses, and consideration of projected stream uses of the losing river(s), including but not limited to, present agricultural, municipal, industrial and in-stream uses, and assimilative needs, with special concern for low flow conditions;
 - (c) protection of the water quality in the losing river(s) at low flow conditions;
 - (d) the reasonably foreseeable future water needs of the losing river basin;
 - (e) the reasonably foreseeable future water needs of the applicant for the water to be transferred, including methods of water use, conservation, and efficiency of use;
 - (f) the beneficial impact of any proposed transfer, and the capability of the applicant to implement effectively its responsibilities under the requested permit;
 - (g) the nature of the applicant's use of the water, to determine whether the use is reasonable and beneficial;
 - (h) whether the proposed project shall promote conservation of water;
 - (i) the feasibility, the costs, and the environmental impacts of alternative sources of supply;
 - (j) the requirements of other state or federal agencies with authority relating to water resources;
 - (k) the availability of water in the losing river basin to respond to emergencies, including drought;
 - (l) whether the project shall have any beneficial or detrimental impact on navigation, hydropower or other power generation, fish and wildlife habitat, aesthetics, or recreation;
 - (m) the quantity, location, and timing of water returned to the basin of origin or a downstream basin;
 - (n) climatic conditions;
 - (o) any offsetting increases in flow in the basin of origin that may be arranged through permit

conditions;

- (p) the number of downstream river miles from which water will be diverted as a result of the transfer; and
- (q) such other factors as are reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes of the Act and this ~~rule~~ chapter.

The foregoing list is to be used by the ~~e~~CCommissioner as a basis both to deny permits and to impose conditions in permits that are issued. The commissioner should use sound discretion in applying this list. It is not intended that the ~~e~~CCommissioner must deny a permit if, in considering the list as a whole, it is the ~~e~~CCommissioner's judgment that the permit should be issued. On the other hand, if one or two of the factors are of such overriding importance that it is the ~~e~~CCommissioner's determination that they necessitate denial of a permit, ~~that which~~ is an appropriate use of these factors.

- (3) No transfer of water may be permitted at any time that would impair the classified uses of a losing river. Furthermore, no transfer of water shall cause the remaining flow in the losing river basin to be less than the seven day, ten year low flow as established prior to the inter-basin transfer unless a condition on the permit states that the transfer of water shall be required to cease when the instantaneous stream flow of the river of origin is equal to or less than a specified value.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-.06~~ 0400-40-13-.06 Terms and Conditions for Individual Permits

- (1) Based upon review of all pertinent information the ~~e~~CCommissioner may issue, deny or issue a permit with conditions.
- (2) When issuing a permit, the ~~e~~CCommissioner may include conditions in the permit, including but not limited to the following:
 - (a) The amount of water approved for transfer may be varied seasonally;
 - (b) The transfer of water shall be required to cease or decrease when the instantaneous stream flow of the river basin of origin is equal to or less than a specified value;
 - (c) Special provisions in order to promote an adequate water supply for the state or to mitigate any future adverse conditions resulting from the transfer;
 - (d) Installation, maintenance and use of stream flow monitoring equipment;
 - (e) Establishment and reporting of transfer activities by the permittee.
- (3) Upon the issuance by the Governor of a declaration or proclamation of an emergency relating to water resources, the ~~e~~CCommissioner may:
 - (a) waive the usual permitting requirements and issue a temporary emergency transfer permit. Any such permit must be limited to meet the needs created by the emergency, and any such permit may be issued for a period no longer than six months or the duration of the Governor's declaration or proclamation, whichever period is shorter; or
 - (b) modify or revoke and reissue any inter-basin transfer permit.
- (4) Permits shall be issued for a renewable term of not more than five years. The ~~e~~CCommissioner may coordinate permits with the issuance cycle for NPDES permits in a watershed.
- (5) Permits may contain such terms and conditions as are appropriate to carry out the purposes of the Act and this chapter. This includes, but is not limited to, provisions for filing periodic reports on the amount transferred and the flow in the losing river.

- (6) Applicants may apply for permit modifications to increase the authorized transfer amount or for other reasons within the term of the permit.
- (7) The eCommissioner may modify, suspend, or revoke a permit for the reasons specified in section 7 of the Act T.C.A. § 69-7-206.
- (8) A transfer permit may be renewed following a full review by the eCommissioner of all past and current information relating to the transfer. An application for transfer permit renewal shall be filed by the applicant with the eCommissioner a minimum of six (6) months prior to permit expiration.
- (9) No permit may be transferred from one person to any other person except upon review and approval by the eCommissioner. In reviewing a request for a permit transfer, the eCommissioner may modify any of the permit terms.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-07~~ 0400-40-13-07 General Permits

- (1) The eCommissioner may issue a general permit for a category of transfer activities. Such permits shall be issued using the same process of public notification as would be used for an individual permit except that the dDepartment will bear the costs involved. Such permits shall require:
 - (a) that any person intending to make use of a general permit for authorization of any transfer must file a Notice of Intent and pay the processing fee specified in the general permit; and
 - (b) that the dDepartment will issue a response either confirming that the general permit is applicable or stating why it is not and directing the person to file an individual permit application.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-08~~ 0400-40-13-08 Enforcement and penalties

- (1) Any person who
 - (a) fails to make a timely application or renewal application for a permit required by the Act;
 - (b) commences an inter-basin transfer without having obtained a permit under the Act and these rules;
 - (c) fails to comply with the terms of a permit; or
 - (d) fails to submit a true and accurate report required by the Act and these rules;
 is subject to a penalty of up to \$10,000-~~00~~ per day per violation as provided in ~~§ 9 of the Act~~ T.C.A. § 69-7-208.
- (2) The eCommissioner is also authorized to file an action in court to address any violation of the Act seeking any remedy available under the Act or at common law.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-09~~ 0400-40-13-09 Hearings

- (1) Any person actually aggrieved by the decision of the eCommissioner to grant or deny a transfer permit may request a hearing before the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas Control Board by filing a written petition within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the decision. With the exception of an applicant for a transfer permit, any person who has not submitted a written comment under ~~1200-4-13-04 above Rule 0400-40-13-04~~, indicating how such person will be adversely affected by a water transfer in a manner or to a degree significantly different from the general public, is not an aggrieved party within the meaning of these rules.

- (2) Any person named in a Commissioner's Order or assessment may request a hearing before the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas Control Board by filing a written petition within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the order or assessment. The petition shall set forth the grounds and reasons for the appeal. If such a petition is not filed within the thirty (30) days, the violator shall be deemed to have consented to the assessment and it shall become final.
- (3) Any such hearing will be conducted in accordance with the contested case provisions of the Uniform Administrative Procedures Act, T.C.A. § 4-5-301 et seq.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-10~~ 0400-40-13-10 Annual Certification

- (1) On or before October 1 of every year, any person who operated an existing inter-basin transfer on May 31, 2000, either directly or through one or more intermediaries, shall file with the department a statement under oath certifying that there has been no increase in the transfer together with flow or pumping records documenting the amount transferred. The ~~d~~Department may develop a form for this purpose.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

~~1200-4-13-11~~ 0400-40-13-11 Protected Areas

Protected areas may be established through a rulemaking action by the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas Control Board. Any person desiring to have such an area established may request this action by sending a letter to the Board stating the basis for such action. The Uniform Administrative Procedures Act also allows a more formal process for requesting a rulemaking action in T.C.A. § 4-5-201.

Authority: T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

* If a roll-call vote was necessary, the vote by the Agency on these rulemaking hearing rules was as follows:

| Board Member | Aye | No | Abstain | Absent | Signature (if required) |
|----------------------|-----|----|---------|--------|-------------------------|
| James W. Cameron III | X | | | | |
| Jill E. Davis | | | | X | |
| Mayor Kevin Davis | X | | | | |
| Derek Gernt | | | | X | |
| John Guoynes | X | | | | |
| C. Monty Halcomb | X | | | | |
| Chuck Head | X | | | | |
| Charlie R. Johnson | X | | | | |
| Judy Manners | X | | | | |
| John McClurkan | X | | | | |
| Frank McGinley | | | | X | |
| D. Anthony Robinson | X | | | | |

I certify that this is an accurate and complete copy of rulemaking hearing rules, lawfully promulgated and adopted by the Board of Water Quality, Oil and Gas on 06/18/2013, and is in compliance with the provisions of T.C.A. § 4-5-222.

I further certify the following:

Notice of Rulemaking Hearing filed with the Department of State on: 02/13/13

Rulemaking Hearing(s) Conducted on: (add more dates). 04/09/13

Date: June 18, 2013

Signature: _____

Name of Officer: James W. Cameron III

Title of Officer: Chairman

Subscribed and sworn to before me on: _____

Notary Public Signature: _____

My commission expires on: _____

All rulemaking hearing rules provided for herein have been examined by the Attorney General and Reporter of the State of Tennessee and are approved as to legality pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 4, Chapter 5.

Robert E. Cooper, Jr.
Attorney General and Reporter

Date

Department of State Use Only

Filed with the Department of State on: _____

Effective on: _____

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

Public Hearing Comments

One copy of a document containing responses to comments made at the public hearing must accompany the filing pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-222. Agencies shall include only their responses to public hearing comments, which can be summarized. No letters of inquiry from parties questioning the rule will be accepted. When no comments are received at the public hearing, the agency need only draft a memorandum stating such and include it with the Rulemaking Hearing Rule filing. Minutes of the meeting will not be accepted. Transcripts are not acceptable.

There were no comments received during the comment period.

Regulatory Flexibility Addendum

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-401 through 4-5-404, prior to initiating the rule making process as described in T.C.A. § 4-5-202(a)(3) and T.C.A. § 4-5-202(a), all agencies shall conduct a review of whether a proposed rule or rule affects small businesses.

This rulemaking is intended to move the rules from Chapter 1200-04-13 to Chapter 0400-40-13 and to edit the document to correct typos and incorrect references.

- (1) The type or types of small business and an identification and estimate of the number of small businesses subject to the proposed rule that would bear the cost of, or directly benefit from the proposed rule.

There is no impact to small businesses and consumers resulting from this rulemaking.

- (2) The projected reporting, recordkeeping, and other administrative costs required for compliance with the proposed rule, including the type of professional skills necessary for preparation of the report or record.

There are no additional costs associated with this rulemaking.

- (3) A statement of the probable effect on impacted small businesses and consumers.

There is no impact to small businesses and consumers resulting from this rulemaking.

- (4) A description of any less burdensome, less intrusive or less costly alternative methods of achieving the purpose and objectives of the proposed rule that may exist, and to what extent the alternative means might be less burdensome to small business.

There is no impact to small businesses resulting from this rulemaking.

- (5) A comparison of the proposed rule with any federal or state counterparts.

There is no meaningful comparison with any federal or state counterparts for this rulemaking.

- (6) Analysis of the effect of the possible exemption of small businesses from all or any part of the requirements contained in the proposed rule.

To accomplish the goal of this rulemaking an exemption of small businesses is not possible.

Impact on Local Governments

Pursuant to T.C.A. §§ 4-5-220 and 4-5-228 "any rule proposed to be promulgated shall state in a simple declarative sentence, without additional comments on the merits of the policy of the rules or regulation, whether the rule or regulation may have a projected impact on local governments." (See Public Chapter Number 1070 (<http://state.tn.us/sos/acts/106/pub/pc1070.pdf>) of the 2010 Session of the General Assembly)

The Department does not anticipate that this rulemaking will have an impact on local governments.

Additional Information Required by Joint Government Operations Committee

All agencies, upon filing a rule, must also submit the following pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-226(i)(1).

- (A)** A brief summary of the rule and a description of all relevant changes in previous regulations effectuated by such rule;

This rulemaking is intended to move the rules from Chapter 1200-04-13 to Chapter 0400-40-13 and to edit the document to correct typos and incorrect references.

- (B)** A citation to and brief description of any federal law or regulation or any state law or regulation mandating promulgation of such rule or establishing guidelines relevant thereto;

This rulemaking is being promulgated under the authority of T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq., 69-7-201 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

- (C)** Identification of persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities most directly affected by this rule, and whether those persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities urge adoption or rejection of this rule;

There is no impact to persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities resulting from this rulemaking. Consequently, there was no support or rejection of this rule.

- (D)** Identification of any opinions of the attorney general and reporter or any judicial ruling that directly relates to the rule;

The Department is not aware of any.

- (E)** An estimate of the probable increase or decrease in state and local government revenues and expenditures, if any, resulting from the promulgation of this rule, and assumptions and reasoning upon which the estimate is based. An agency shall not state that the fiscal impact is minimal if the fiscal impact is more than two percent (2%) of the agency's annual budget or five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000), whichever is less;

This rulemaking will have no fiscal impact on state and local governments.

- (F)** Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives, possessing substantial knowledge and understanding of the rule;

Robert O'Dette
Division of Water Resources
William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243
(615) 253-5319

- (G)** Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees;

Jenny Howard
Deputy General Counsel
Office of General Counsel

- (H)** Office address, telephone number, and email address of the agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees; and

Office of General Counsel
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation
William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 2nd Floor

Nashville, Tennessee 37243
(615) 532-0131
Jenny.Howard@tn.gov

(I) Any additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

The Department is not aware of any.